
BOROUGH OF FAIR LAWN 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Special Meeting 
of July 9, 2007 

 
 
Following are the minutes of the Fair Lawn Zoning Board of Adjustment's special 
meeting held on Monday, July 9, 2007. 
 
Vice-Chairman Douglas Charipper called the special meeting to order at 7:10 p.m. and 
declared that the meeting was being held in accordance with the Open Public Meeting 
Law. 
 
Roll Call:  Present were: Mr. Karas, Mr. Newman, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Salerno,  

Mr. Sacchinelli, Mr. Diner, Mr. Meer and Mr. Charipper. 
 
 Absent were: Mr. Blecher, Mr. Nakashian and Mr. Levy. 
  
Also in attendance were William Soukas, Board Attorney; Cheryl Bergailo, Board 
Planner; Mark Kataryniak, Traffic Engineer; Karen Kocsis, Court Reporter; and Carol 
LoPiccolo, Zoning Board Clerk.  Paul Azzolina, Board Engineer, arrived at 9:00 p.m. 
 

Estimates: 
 

1. Taylor Design Group for $1,275.00 for Zap Lube and $900.00 for 18-01 Pollitt 
Drive. 

2. Birdsall Engineering for $1,800.00 for 18-01 Pollitt Drive. 
 

Mr. Karas made a motion to approve these estimates and Mr. Diner seconded the 
motion. 
 
VOTE:  All Present - AYE. 

 
Vouchers:
 

1. Taylor Design in the amounts of $1,260.00 for Omnipoint; $105.00 for 
PowerTech; $735.00 for Sprint; and $1,050.00 for Fire Company #1. 

2. Birdsall Engineering in the amount of $1,310.50 in reference to the Fair Lawn 
Fire Dept. Co. #1. 

 
Ms. Spindel made a motion to approve these vouchers and Mr. Karas seconded 
the motion. 

 
VOTE:  All Present - AYE. 

 

 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
07/09/07 – Minutes 
Page 2 
 
 
 
Commercial Old Business: 

1. Application #2006-038, 37-10 Broadway, LLC (Zap Lube) 
37-02/37-10 Broadway, Block 2201, Lot 2, Zone B-2 
The placement of a billboard sign on the property located at 37-01 through 37-10 
Broadway.  The billboard requires a use variance as the service is provided at 
another location RGO Section 125-57(d)(1), 125-41.F(8) and 125-41B(4)(b).   
 
Ronald Mondello [attorney for the applicant] came forward.  Mr. Mondello stated 
that there is 1 large piece of property owned by Mr. Weiner.  The application is 
for a sign.  Both the Fair Lawn Ordinance and MLUL says that if a sign is on a 
building which has nothing to do with the use, it is a D variance.  The sign is on 
the MetroBowl building which is owned by Mr. Weiner and adjoins the Zap Lube 
property.  If Mr. Weiner took over a space in the Metro Bowl building a use 
variance would not be required because he could then put the sign on the building. 
 
Ms. Spindel recused herself from this application. 
 
Mr. Karas asked if the application is dealing with Lots 2 & 3, and are they owned 
by the same owner.  Mr. Mondello responded no. 
 
Matthew Fox, President of Canger Engineering, came forward and was sworn in 
and was accepted as an expert witness.   
 
Mr. Fox described the property being located at Yerger Road and Route 4 on the 
southbound side with an existing car wash and small office on Lot 2.  Lot 3 is on 
the corner and has an existing 2 story building with retail and office space in the 
existing building.  There is an existing parking lot behind that building and is in a 
B-2 zone.  Minor site plan was prepared by Canger Engineering, dated April 6, 
2006 with a revision date of 10/24/06 and was marked as Exhibit A-1. 
 
Mr. Fox stated there is an existing fence along Lot 2 and there is an existing 
garage along the property line that would be removed.  That would allow for 
traffic to enter the site and would have 28 parking spaces with one way aisles 
exiting out onto Yerger Road.  This has been done in combination with BIC over 
several meetings and discussions.  BIC indicated they would support this.  Mr. 
Fox felt this is a safer traffic configuration.  From Yerger Road the access has 
been closed off.  Currently a vehicle would have to exit onto Route 4 and go 
through several residential streets [Tunbridge, Yost and Yerger] to go back onto 
Route 4 West.  With the proposed site plan, that would be eliminated.  The 
proposed would create 2 one way aisles onto Yerger Road.  The proposed plan 
would have access only and there would be 28 parking angled spaces.     
 
Mr. Fox stated that the proposed signage is safer than what is currently on the site.  
The applicant needs these signs because Metro borders the right of way line.  The 
building blocks the view for patrons heading down Broadway and blocks the Zap 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
07/09/07 – Minutes 
Page 3 
 
 
 

Lube car wash.  The site has limitations for access because of the Metro building 
location.  The proposed signage would eliminate the “slamming of brakes” and 
would increase the visibility.   
 
Mr. Diner asked if the site plan depicts how a vehicle would traverse through the 
property.  Mr. Fox stated that a vehicle would go through the back of the site to 
gain access to the car wash.  Mr. Fox stated that with some of the parking spaces 
being eliminated located along the office of the building and that would provide 
for a vehicle to exit toward that direction. 
 
Mr. Karas asked if the parking spots along the office if they are being eliminated.  
Mr. Fox stated they would remain.  The building is back 20’ from the property 
line.  Mr. Fox stated the method of operation would have to be changed. 
 
Mr. Mondello stated that the applicant has agreed to almost all of the 
recommendations of the BIC.  Mr. Mondello stated that BIC wanted a substantial 
reduction on the sign on the Metro building.  The applicant agreed to everything 
except for the reduction of the sign and did not agree to the elimination of the sign 
designated as U-2. 
 
Dennis Cummins [attorney for BIC] came forward and objected to Mr. 
Mondello’s testimony and that there was no agreement.  Mr. Mondello stated that 
he has documentation to prove that there were discussions and an agreement. 
 
Mr. Mondello read the recommendations from BIC. 
 
Mr. Fox stated that buffering would be provided along the rear of Lot 2.  The 
fencing would be replaced that buffers the residential area.  Lighting would also 
be provided.  Resurfacing the parking lot would also be done.  A landscaping plan 
was also provided.  There would be an installment of a landscaping buffer not less 
than 5’ at the rear of the Metro building and along the westerly side which abuts a 
residential area.   
 
Mr. Karas asked on Lot 3 how many businesses occupy that building.  Mr. 
Mondello responded 4.  Mr. Karas asked how many parking spaces are required 
for that building.  Mr. Fox did not have a parking calculation for the office 
building.  There has been as much parking provided behind the building that 
could be done.  Mr. Mondello stated that if the D variance were approved, they 
would come back with a full site plan.  Mr. Karas felt the entire plan depends on 
the parking for Lot 3.  Mr. Mondello wanted to bifurcate the application.  Mr. 
Karas did not want the application bifurcated.  Mr. Mondello stated that these 
conditions are pre-existing and have provided these details due to the 
recommendations of the BIC and this is now an improved plan. 
 
Mr. Fox stated that the parking lot is underused presently and there is no striping.  
The applicant has provided as much parking as could have been provided.   



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
07/09/07 – Minutes 
Page 4 
 
 
 

 
Mr. Karas stated that if the traffic flow is changed on Lot 2 and is part of the 
parking layout on Lot 3.  Mr. Karas stated the necessity of the sign on the side of 
the Metro Building [sign 4F], as stated by Mr. Fox, the Metro building blocks the 
entrance to Zap Lube.  Mr. Karas referred to 4F, the proposed sign on the 
building, and there is no indication as to where the Zap Lube business is.  Mr. Fox 
agreed.  Mr. Mondello stated that portion of the sign has been eliminated as per 
the recommendations of BIC.  Mr. Karas stated the present sign indicates where 
the Zap Lube is and what is really needed.  Mr. Fox felt is was better to have the 
arrow indicating where Zap Lube is.   
 
Mr. Karas asked what is the requirement of buffering between residential and 
business properties.  Mr. Fox read from the section of the Ordinance.  Mr. Karas 
stated there is no buffer there now.  Mr. Fox stated there are some trees there now 
and the minimum buffer is 10’.  
 
Mr. Meer felt a lot of spaces were not needed for the Zap Lube portion.  The 
applicant would respond to that question.  Mr. Meer asked if the additional 
parking spaces would there still be cueing that spills out onto Route 4.  Mr. Fox 
stated no.  There would be a lane painted on that would help control the cars 
coming in.   Mr. Fox stated there would be stacking and the cueing for the car 
wash would occur along the property to the rear of the car wash.  Parking spaces 
28 and 29 would be used by the patrons of the building adjacent to Lot 3.  That 
would take parking off Broadway.  Those spaces were never intended for the 
patrons of the car wash. 
 
Mr. Meer asked if the second floor of Lot 3 if they were residences.  Mr. Fox 
responded yes.  Mr. Meer asked if the residences would be allowed to use the 
parking spaces.  Mr. Fox responded yes. 
 
Mr. Newman asked if the D variance pertains only to the 4’x28.5’ new sign on the 
easterly and westerly sign.  Mr. Mondello stated yes.  Mr. Newman asked if there 
are signs there now that are there illegally.  Mr. Mondello stated that is irrelevant.  
Mr. Mondello stated the signs were put up without a permit and there is no 
variance that has been granted.  Mr. Newman wanted clarification on the variance  
being sought that is for the signs proposed and could not be changed later on.  Mr. 
Mondello stated they could not change any signage without coming back to the 
Board. 
 
Mr. Salerno asked if Sign 5A is being removed.  Mr. Mondello stated that sign 5A 
would remain, but cleaned up.  Sign 6A would be removed. 
 
Mr. Sacchinelli asked if Drawing 2U, why this sign needs to be installed on the 
building when 5A is in front of the car wash and 7A.  Wouldn’t the traffic see it 
all from Route 4?  Mr. Mondello responded that to a certain extent it is redundant.  
Mr. Sacchinelli asked what building was there first.  The Metro building was 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
07/09/07 – Minutes 
Page 5 
 
 
 

there first and Zap Lube was put there afterwards.  Mr. Mondello responded yes, 
but if the building were further back, he wouldn’t need the signage. 
 
Mr. Sacchinelli referred to sign 1B which refers to the promotion of the month.  
Mr. Mondello stated Mr. Weiner would address that question.  Sign 1B has been 
removed.  Mr. Sacchinelli felt there were a lot of signs on the building.  Mr. 
Sacchinelli asked if the lit signs would be lit 24/7.  Mr. Mondello stated no. 
 
Mr. Newman asked if the approval being sought and if Lot 3 were sold, the D 
variance would continue.  Mr. Mondello stated yes, but could not change the 
signs. 
 
Mr. Soukas asked if the traffic flow between Lots 2 & 3, if one of the lots were 
sold, how would that work.  Mr. Fox stated an easement could be provided to 
allow for access to the rear of the building.  Mr. Mondello stated there are no 
future plans to sell either one of the lots. 
 
Mr. Karas asked if sign U2 on the Metro Building what is the necessity of that 
sign.  Mr. Fox stated that is what the applicant proposes.  Mr. Karas stated there is 
a total of 5 signs for the car wash.  Mr. Mondello stated the sign expert would 
address these questions. 
 
Mr. Karas asked if the applicant would be willing to reduce the amount of signs.  
Mr. Mondello stated yes, but would not be willing to remove sign 4F and agree 
that the sign should have 100’ ahead with an arrow on the sign. 
 
Mr. Diner asked if the concrete base for sign 5F is in the middle of where you 
would turn left.  Mr. Mondello agreed. 
 
A five minute recess was taken at 8:20 p.m.  The meeting resumed at 8:30 p.m.  
All were present upon roll call. 
 
Mr. Charipper opened the meeting to the public.  Dennis Cummins [attorney for 
BIC and on the Board of Trustees for BIC] came forward.  Mr. Cummins asked if 
Mr. Fox had a discussion with Mr. Weiner regarding marketing needs for the 
signage.  Mr. Fox responded no.  Mr. Cummins asked if Mr. Fox asked the 
applicant when the signs were put up.  Mr. Mondello objected to the questions.  
Mr. Charipper stated a sign expert will give testimony.  Mr. Fox stated his 
testimony was based upon the meetings that occurred between BIC.  Mr. 
Charipper felt the questioning is irrelevant. 
 
Mr. Cummins presented photos that were marked as Exhibit O-1.  Mr. Cummins 
asked how many lanes are in the car wash.  Mr. Fox stated 1.  Mr. Cummins 
asked where the drying of cars would occur?  Mr. Fox stated there are no changes 
to the operation for the car wash.  Mr. Cummins stated that BIC objects to the car 
wash encroaching onto the public right of way.  Mr. Charipper asked if that were 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
07/09/07 – Minutes 
Page 6 
 
 
 

an enforcement issue.  Mr. Cummins felt that is part of the site plan.  Mr. Fox 
stated there are limitations to the site and are not proposing any changes to the 
setbacks.  Mr. Cummins asked if the polishing of cars could occur within the site.  
Mr. Fox felt it could occur on the site.  Mr. Cummins asked if the drying could 
occur within the car wash building.  Mr. Fox stated the applicant could answer 
that, but there are additional bays at the back of the building that could possibly 
be used.   
 
Don Smart [BIC], came forward.  Mr. Smart stated the applicant has worked with 
Joint Design Committee and spent a lot of time working on this application to 
come up with a plan that reflects the recommendations of BIC.  Mr. Smart stated 
that there are technical issues that will be left to the Board’s professionals to fine 
tune this to benefit the town. 
 
Ira Marks, 0-54 Yost Place, was sworn in and stated that the signs that are up are 
illegal and he in opposition of this application.  Mr. Newman stated it is not 
public comment at this time and is only open to questions of Mr. Fox. 
 
Mr. Charipper closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Kataryniak [Board Traffic Engineer] was sworn in.  Mr. Kataryniak presented 
his report dated July 9, 2007.  Mr. Kataryniak stated that sign 2U and asked if it 
were redundant for traffic traveling west.  Mr. Fox stated it would not be the only 
sign viewable from the west.  Mr. Kataryniak felt the site modifications in respect 
to parking – Lot 2 has frontage and access to Broadway and those driveways are 
under the jurisdiction of the State D.O.T. and would require their approval.  The 
circulation for the traffic on Lot 3 – anyone coming in off Route 4 if a parking 
space weren’t available there, they would have to come back onto the highway.  
Mr. Fox stated there were 3 layouts that were reviewed by BIC.  Mr. Fox stated 
that no cars would be traveling south on Yerger Road.  The configuration 
proposed is the safer way.  Mr. Kataryniak agreed. 
 
Mr. Kataryniak felt the parking waivers or variances should be part of this 
application.  The applicant should provide parking calculations.  Mr. Kataryniak 
stated there is 19.7’ to the DOT right of way line – any condition of a DOT permit 
cannot be used for any site circulation.  The circulation would have to occur 
within the 19.7’.  Mr. Kataryniak stated the pylon sign [5A] is in the way of the 
circulation.   Mr. Fox stated they are not promoting a left turn lane out of the car 
wash.   
 
Mr. Kataryniak stated the parking lot on Lot 3, asked if there are 2 curb cuts on 
Yerger Road.  Mr. Fox responded yes.  Mr. Kataryniak stated that the entry traffic 
from Route 4 and the context of the BIC and the Borough is to encourage off 
street parking for businesses.  It may be worth considering a directional sign to 
direct motorists to the back of the lot.  Mr. Mondello stated that Mr. Kataryniak 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
07/09/07 – Minutes 
Page 7 
 
 
 

and Mr. Fox could possibly come up with a better design, and have presented the 
current plan based on BIC’s suggestions. 
 
Mr. Kataryniak stated the cueing of the car wash is only 1 lane and the proposed 
is to have 2 cueing lanes.  Mr. Kataryniak asked if that is adequate.  Mr. Mondello 
stated if the D-variance is granted, the applicant will do whatever the Board 
recommends.  Mr. Kataryniak felt it would be beneficial to have a 3rd cue lane to 
bypass the other lanes. 
 
Ms. Cheryl Bergailo, [Board Planner], was sworn in.  Ms. Bergailo asked if Mr. 
Fox could comply with the recommendations in her report.  Mr. Fox responded 
yes.  Ms. Bergailo asked if there is a fence proposed along Lots 1 & 3.  Mr. Fox 
responded no, because trees would have to be removed. 
 
Ms. Bergailo asked where would the trash enclosure be located.  Mr. Mondello 
stated they would place it where the Board recommends.  Mr. Fox stated it could 
be placed at the rear of the property, as long as the residents are o.k. with that. 
 
Mr. Mondello stated that on page 1 of Ms. Bergailo’s report it mentions that car 
washes are not permitted.  Mr. Mondello stated that this is a conditional use.  Ms. 
Bergailo agreed. 
 
Mr. Cummins referred to Exhibit O-1.  Mr. Mondello objected to the photos and 
this is an enforcement issue of cars being in the right of way.  Mr. Cummins asked 
if Mr. Kataryniak had any recommendations to this.  Mr. Kataryniak stated the 
10’ of the curb and the right of way prohibits site activity.  Mr. Kataryniak stated 
curbing could be placed at the edge of the sidewalk to prevent the activity from 
occurring. 
 
Mr. Cummins asked if lighting was part of the site plan.  Mr. Fox stated a lighting 
plan is part of the application as Sheet 5.  Mr. Fox depicted the lighting plan and 
stated there would be additional buffers to prevent lighting spillage onto the 
properties adjacent to the site.  Mr.  Mondello noted those are existing conditions 
today. 
 
Abdul Seedad, 0-53 Yost Place, came forward and complained about the 
conditions of the site and the lighting.  Mr. Mondello stated Mr. Weiner would 
meet with Mr. Seedad to clarify the concerns. 
 
Mr. Smart asked if buffering between the two properties between the applicant 
and an adjacent neighbor.  Mr. Smart asked if a fence would be proposed.  Mr. 
Fox stated if a fence were to be done, 4 trees would be removed.  Mr. Fox stated 
that Ms. Bergailo’s report recommended additional buffering.  Mr. Smart asked if 
higher hedging could be put in instead.  Mr. Fox stated that was a 
recommendation of Ms. Bergailo. 
 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
07/09/07 – Minutes 
Page 8 
 
 
 

Mr. Sacchinelli stated that hedges are proposed along Lots 2, 3 and 4 and if so, 
then where would snow be put.  Mr. Fox stated there is adequate room.  Mr. 
Sacchinelli felt the hedges were a good idea, but snow removal may be a problem.  
 
Robert Bogdown, 1-191 Yerger Road, and was sworn in.  Mr. Bogdown stated 
that he owns the property and has a mess with garbage coming into his yard.  Mr. 
Bogdown asked how that would be stopped with hedges.  Mr. Mondello stated 
that the applicant will remove debris.  
 
Fred Selser, 0-158 Yerger Road, was sworn and asked if there is 10’ from the 
curb to where a person could conduct business.  Mr. Kataryniak stated the 
sidewalk is within the 10’ right of way and the State prohibits someone from 
conducting business in the right of way.  Mr. Selser stated he could call the police 
to report the car wash of conducting business in the right of way. 
 
Linda Bogdown, 1-191 Yerger Road, was sworn and asked if a fence could be put 
in within the property line.  Mr. Mondello stated a fence would be put up. 
 
Joan Marks, 0-54 Yost Place, was sworn and asked if the traffic signs at the edge 
of the driveway if they are enforceable by the police.  Mr. Kataryniak stated the 
applicant would have to stipulate to Title 39 for the police to enforce it.  Mr. 
Mondello stated he would have to confer with his client. 
 
Mr. Charipper asked the attorney for 18-01 Pollitt Drive to come forward at this 
time with Mr. Mondello to determine the remaining time required for these 2 
applications. 
 
A 5 minute recess was taken at 9:30 p.m.  The meeting resumed at 9:35 p.m.  Roll 
call was taken and all were present. 
 
The Zap Lube application was carried and the applicant waived all time 
constraints. 
 
APPLICATION CARRIED TO AUGUST 7, 2007 AT 7:00 P.M. 
 

Commercial New Business: 
 

1. Application #2007- 055, Hampshire Companies, L.L.C. 
Bergen-Passaic Cataract Surgery & Laser Center 
18-01 Pollitt Drive, Block 4802, Lot 2, Zone I-1 
Medical use is not permitted in an I-1 zone.  Use variance is required as per 
Section 125-28.  Modifications to the existing site plan requires site plan 
approval.  Proposed parking is 371 spaces.  Existing spaces of 349 where 411 
spaces are required, a waiver is needed.  
 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
07/09/07 – Minutes 
Page 9 
 
 
 

An estimate for Paul Azzolina for this application for $3,500.00 was presented for 
approval.  Mr. Diner made a motion to approve this estimate and Ms. Spindel 
seconded the motion. 

 
Stuart Leibman [attorney for the applicant] came forward.  The application is for 
18-01 Pollitt Drive in the I-1 zone.  The property contains a building of 135,000 
s.f  No addition to the building is proposed.  It is an increase in the amount of 
parking spaces.  The façade of the exterior will be changed.  The Eye Laser 
Center is a medical office use and is a non-permitted use and a use variance is 
required.  The tenant will occupy 10,000 s.f.  The Valley Hospital facility has 
been there for a few years and there is another tenant of a rehabilitation center.  
The rest of the building is vacant.  This application is consistent with the 208 
corridor plan and with the Master Plan.  The site right now is under-parked.  The 
number will be 371 and will be 40 spaces deficient, but is enough to handle the 
site.  A pre-existing non-conforming condition exists.  Impervious coverage of 
72.2% exists and 60% is what is allowed.  5,400 s.f. is being added to the 
impervious coverage.  73.5% of coverage is what is proposed.  There is an 
existing non-conformity for a front yard setback and is not being changed.   
 
Mr. Charipper opened the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Don Smart [EDC and Joint Design Review Committee] was sworn in.  Mr. 
Smart stated that this applicant asked the EDC and the Joint Design Review 
Committee about the plan for the area.  The application before this Board has 
been reviewed by both bodies and this is consistent with the Joint Design Review 
Committee and EDC.  The hope for this property and the industrial area is to 
reframe it for a new millennium for white collar workers and this use is consistent 
with that.  The façade is an enhancement to the area and the EDC is in support of 
this application. 
 
Charles Witczak, [Professional Engineer for the applicant] came forward and was 
sworn in and accepted as an expert witness.  Mr. Witczak presented a color 
rendering of the site and depicted the site.  The lawn area will remain.  The 
existing parking lot will remain in tact.  A drop off aisle would be added for the 
Laser Center.  The amount of parking has been maximized.  The variance for a 
front yard setback is not changing.  The building is 135,000 s.f.  There will be 2 
way traffic at the northerly portion of the site.  The site currently has 349 parking 
spaces and will be increased to 371 spaces.  Sidewalks are being proposed along 
the front.  There is 411 spaces required for the site.  The impervious coverage is 
73.5% being proposed.  The storm water run-off has been examined and the site is 
acceptable as proposed.  There is a 1% increase in storm water run off.  The 
impact is minimal.  There will be no change in utilities.  There will be new bushes 
added to the site.   
 
Mr. Witczak stated that the sign at southwesterly side will conform with all 
ordinances as requested by the Board’s professional. 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
07/09/07 – Minutes 
Page 10 
 
 
 

 
Ms. Cheryl Bergailo [Board Planner] stated the proposed shrubs along Pollitt 
Drive, there is a u-hedge there already and the applicant may want to supplement 
that and may not need the proposed shrubs.  Ms. Bergailo asked if a 6’ fence is 
proposed.  Mr. Witczak responded no.  Ms. Bergailo asked if the proposed 
dumpster enclosure is sufficient to accommodate the entire building.  Mr. Witczak 
stated that is the intent.  Ms. Bergailo stated the proposed parking sign along 
Pollitt Drive – could that be accomplished with striping.  Mr. Witczak responded 
yes.  Mr. Witczak asked if shade trees were still recommended in the islands.  Ms. 
Bergailo stated if the islands are striped it needs to be shown on the plans.  Where 
possible, Ms. Bergailo felt shade trees should be provided in the parking area and 
along the frontage. 
 
Mr. Paul Azzolina [Zoning Board Engineer], read from his report dated July 9, 
2007.  There is an existing rehabilitation specialty in the building.  Mr. Leibman 
stated the existing tenant is permanent and has a C.O. for general office use.  Mr. 
Azzolina noted that when visiting the site, there was not a problem with parking.  
Mr. Azzolina asked the size of the canopy.  Mr. Witczak stated it would be 10’ 
from the curb.  Mr. Azzolina agreed that the change in storm water drainage as 
being adequate.  Mr. Azzolina noted that there is a waiver needed for the parking.  
Mr. Azzolina asked that the staffing be addressed.  Mr. Leibman stated that would 
be addressed.  Mr. Azzolina stated additional lighting should be provided.  
Environmental investigations have been done and asked if there are any waste 
management issues.  Mr. Witczak stated the medical waste would be handled by a 
separate contractor.  Mr. Azzolina recommended that certain conditions be 
imposed as indicated in Mr. Azzolina’s report. 
 
Mr. Mark Kataryniak [Board Traffic Engineer], read from his report dated July 9, 
2007.  Mr. Witczak stated they would amend the plans to accommodate Mr. 
Kataryniak’s recommendations. 
 
Mr. Meer asked if there are other medical uses in that zone right now.  Mr. 
Leibman stated the Valley Hospital kidney dialysis is there right now.  Mr. Meer 
stated the physical appearance will be better than what is there now. 
 
Ms. Spindel asked if a planting strip could be put on the easterly portion.  Mr. 
Witczak stated there are loading areas there and would look to see if an island 
could be added.  Ms. Spindel stated that there are plants mentioned on the plans 
that are not conducive to the site.  Mr. Witczak would work with the Board on 
that matter.  Ms. Spindel asked if an irrigation system would be installed.  Mr. 
Witczak stated the applicant would put in an irrigation system.  Ms. Spindel stated 
the shade trees should not be lit all day and night. 
 
Mr. Karas asked if there are 4 vacant areas 2 warehouse and 2 office.  If the 
warehouse areas become office, what will happen with the parking – there is a 
shortage now.  Mr. Leibman stated if a change in occupancy occurs, the applicant 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
07/09/07 – Minutes 
Page 11 
 
 
 

will have to come back before this Board for a variance.  Mr. Karas felt from a 
parking perspective, the proposed use is more intense than other uses.  Mr. 
Leibman stated the Ordinance requires much more than what is actually needed.  
Mr. Karas agreed that the site is currently being under utilized by the site. 
 
Mr. Virgilio Caraballo, 18-01 Pollitt Drive, Suite 1A, asked about the drop off 
area and he is adjacent to the tenant and has several people throughout the day 
who visit their medical office with handicapped individuals.  Mr. Witczak 
presented a concept plan dated 7/9/07 and it was marked as Exhibit A-2.  Mr. 
Witczak depicted the drop off area on the conceptual plan.  Mr. Caraballo had a 
concern for visitors having to cross a parking lot.  Mr. Caraballo asked how wide 
the curb would be to the left.  Mr. Witczak stated there would be a ramp and 
move directly toward the building and there is adequate space for the sidewalk.  
Mr. Caraballo asked what the width of the drop off area would be since 3 spots 
were being removed.  Mr. Witczak stated there would be an additional 5 spaces 
that would be added.  Mr. Caraballo and Mr. Witczak discussed the site 
configurations and Mr. Carabello asked the width of the island.  Mr. Witczak 
responded 5’.  Mr. Witczak described the curb cuts which would be a 
handicapped style with a ramp and curb cut. 
 
Mr. Caraballo wanted to make sure that the entry closest to the door to make it as 
simple as possible for his customers.  Mr. Witczak stated the site as proposed is a 
suitable proposal. 
 
Mr. Charipper recommended that Mr. Carabello speak with Mr. Leibman to make 
sure all concerns are addressed. 
 
Application carried to July 12, 2007.  The applicant waived the time 
requirements of the Board to act on this application. 
 

Adjourn 
 
Mr. Newman made a motion to adjourn this meeting.  Mr. Sacchinelli seconded the 
motion. 
 
VOTE:  All Present – Yes. 
TIME:   10:55 p.m. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      Carol LoPiccolo 
      Zoning Board Clerk 
 


	Estimates:
	Adjourn
	      Carol LoPiccolo

